BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Second Amended Case No. 4389
Accusation Against:
JAMES A. WILSON
P.O. Box 73023

San Clemente, CA 92673

Pharmacist License No. RPH 23617

Respondent.

DECISION AND ORDER
The attached Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby adopted by the

Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs, as its Decision in this matter,
This decision shall become effective on September 18, 2014,

It is so ORDERED on September 11, 2014,

BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

/g(.%m

STAN C. WEISSER
Board President
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KAMALA D, HARRIS

Attorney General of California

GREGORY I. SALUTE

Supervising Deputy Attorney General

THOMAS L. RINALDI

Deputy Attorney General

State Bar No. 206911
300 So. Spring Street, Suite 1702
Los Angelss, CA 90013
Telephone: (213) 897-2541
Facsimile; (213) 897-2804

Atiorneys for Complainant -

: BEFORE THE
* BOARD OF PHARMACY -
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
© © STATE OF CALIFORNIA-

Tn the Matter of the Second Amended Case No, 4389

Acousation Against: ,

: STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND
JAMES A, WILSON DISCIPLINARY ORDER
P.O. Box 2092 ’ .
Arcadia, CA 91077
Pharmacist License No. RPH 23617

Respondent.

ITIS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGRFEED by and between the parties to the above-

entitled proceedmgs that the following matters are true;
' | PARTIES _

1. Virginia Hereld ("Complainant") is the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy.
She brought this action solely in her official cépacity and is represented in this matter by.KamaIa
D. Haris, Attorney General of the State of California, by Thomas L. Rinaldi; Deputy Attorney
General, _ -

'_ 2. Respondent Jaﬁles A, Wilson ("Respondent") is represented  this procceaing b3-f.

attorney Herb Weinberg, whose address is: 1800 Ce;atury Park Bast, Los Angeles, CA 90047,

3, Onorabout August 10, 1967, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacist License No,
RPH 23617 to James A, Wilson (Respondent). The Pharmacist License was in full force and
effe;t at all times relevant to the chafges brought in Second Amended Accusation No. 43é9 and
will expire on December 31, 2015, unless renewed. '
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JURISDICTION
4,  Second Amended Accusation No, 4389 was filed before the Board of Pharmacy

(Board) , Department of Consumer Affairs, and is currently pending against Respondent. The

Second Amended Accusation and all other statutorily required doc’mﬁents were Iiroperly gerved
on Respondent on February 24, 2014, Respondent timely filed his Notice of Defense contesting
the‘ Secona Amended Accusation,

5. Acopy of Second Amended Accusation No, 4389 is attached as exhibit A and
incorporated herein by reference. ‘

- ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS

6.  Respondent has carefully read, fully discussed with counsel, and understanﬁs the .
charges and aflegations in Second Amended Accusation No, 4389. Respondent has also ca:féfully.
read, fully discussed with counsel, and vnderstands the effects of this Stipulated Settlement and
Disciplinary Order. |

7. Respondent is fully aware of his legal rig]its in thié 1£1&tter, including the right to a
hearing o the charges and allegations in the Secdond Amended Accusation; the right to be
rapfesented by counsel at his own expense; the right to confronf and cross-examine the witnesses
against him; the rightto present evidence and to testify on his own behalf; the right to the
issuance of s;ubpoenas to compel the attendance of witnesses and the ﬁro.duction of documents;
the right to reconsideration and court review of an édverse decision; and all other riéhté accorded
by the California Administretive Procedure Act and other applicable laws, .

8. ReSpéndent voluntarily, knr;wingly, and intelligently waives-and gives up each and
evory right set forth above, '

| CULPABILITY

'9. Respondent urderstands and agrees that the charges and allegations in Second
Amended Accusation No, 4389, if proven at a heating, constitute cause for imposing discipline
upon his Pharmacist License." -

10,  For the purpose of resolving the Second Amended Accusation without the expense

and uncertainty of further proceedings, Respondent agrees that, ata heariné Complainant could

2
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establish a factual basis for the charges iﬁ the Second Amended Accusation, and that Respondent
hereby gi{fes up his right to contést those charges, |

11, rRespondent agrees that hfs Pharmacist License is subject to diécipl]’lne and.hc agrees
to be bound by the Board's probationary terms as set forth in the Disciplinary Order below,

RESERVATION B

12. The admissions made by Respondent.hcrcin are only for the purposes of this
procesding, or any other proceedings in which the Board of Ph-armacy or other professional
licensing agency is involved, and shall not be admissible in any other criminal 61' civil
procaeding

- CONTINGENCY

13, This stipulation shall be subject to approval by the Board of Pharmacy. Respondent
understands and agrees that counsel for Complainaﬁt and the staff of the Board of Phamacy may
commmunicate directly With the Board regarding this sﬁpﬁl&tion and settlement, without notice to
or parﬁd.ip ation by Respondent or his counsel, By signing the.stipulation, Respondent
understands and agrees that he may not withdraw his agreement or seek to rescind the stipulation

prior to the time the Board considers and acts upon it. Ifthe Board fails to adopt this stipulation

- as its Decision and Order, the Stipulated Settlament and Disciplinary Order shall be of no force ot

. effect, except for this paragraph, it shall be inadmissible in any legal action between the patties,

and the Board shall not be disqualified from further action by having considered this matter.

14, The parties understand and agree that Portable Document Format (PDF) and facsimile

copies of this Stipulated Settletnent and Disciplinary Order, including Portable Document Format |

(PDF) and facsimile signatures thereto, shall have the same force and effect as the originals,
15. This Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is intended by the parties to be an

integratéd writing representing the complets, final, and exclusive embodiment of their agreement,

‘It supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous agreements, understandings, discussions,

negotiations, and commitmments (written or oral), This Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary
Order may not be altered, amended, modified, supplemented, or otherwise changed except by a 7

writing exectited by an authorized representative of esch of the parties.
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16.  In consideration of the foregoiﬁg admissions and stipulations, the parties agree that
the Board may, without further notice or formal proceeding, issue and enter the following '
Disciplinary Order: -

' DISCIPLINARY ORDER

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Pharmacist License No, RPH 23617 issued to Respondent
james A Wilson (Respondent) is revoked. ‘However, the revocation is stayed and Respondent is
placed on probation for five (5) years on the following terms and conditions, l

1. Obey All Laws A
"+ ~Respondent shall obey all state and federal laws and regulations. -

Respondent shall report any of the following occurrcnco$ o the board, iﬁ writing, witﬁin
seventy-two (72) hours of such occurrence: | _

’ an arrest or isguance of a criminal complaint for iriola:uion of any provision of the

| Pharrhacy Law, state and federal food and drug laws, or state and féderél controlled |

substances laws _

. a plea of guilty or nolo contendre in any state or federal .criminal proceeding to any

criminal complaint, information or indictment

« - gconviciion of any crime _

-« " discipline, citation, orl other administrative action filed by any state or‘federa] agency
which involves respondent’s pharmacist license ot which is related to the practice of
pharmacy of the manufacturing, obtaining, handling, distributing, billing, or charging
for any drug, device or contmlled substance, ' '

Failure to timely report such occurrence shall be considersd a violation of probation,

2. Rep.ort to the Board |

Respondent sha].l report tc; the board quarterly, on a schedule as directed by the board or its
designee. The report shall be made ejther in person or in writing, as directed, Among ofher

requiremenigs, respendent shall state in each report undel;-penalty of perjury whether thers has

| been compliance with all the terms and conditions of probation, Failure to submit timely reports

in a form as directed shall be considered a violation of probation. Any period(s) of delinquency

4
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in submission of reperts as directed may be added to the total period of probation, Moreover, if
the final probation report is pot made as directed, probation shall be automatically iextended until.
guch time aé the final report is made. and accepted by the board, '

- 3, Interview with the Board

Upon receipt of reasonable prior notice, réspondent shall appear in person for interviews

with the.board or its designee, at such intervals and locations as are determined by the board or its '

designes, Failure to apﬁear for any'scheduled interview without prior notification o board staff,
or failure to appear for two (2) or more sohedﬁled irterviews with the board or its designee during
the period of probation, shall be consi&er@d g violation of ~probation.

4. Cooperate with Board Staff .

Respondent shall cooperate with the board's inspection pro'gram and with the board's
monitoring and investigatibn of respondeﬁt's cc;mpliance with the terms and conditions of his
probation. Failure to cooperate shail be congidered a violation of probation,

5. Continuing Education

Réspondent shall provide evidence of efforts to main_tain skill and knowledge asa
pharmacist as directed by the'ﬁoard ;:)r its designee, - —

6. Notice to Eniployers

-During the period of probation, respo.'ndent shall notify all i)resant and prospective
employérs of the decision in case number 4389 and the terms, conditions and restrictions imposed
on respondent by the decision, as follows: _

Wi;chin thirty (30) days of the effective date of this decision, and within ﬁfte'en‘ (15) days of
resp ondsnf undertaking any new employmeﬁt, regpondent shall cause his direct supervisor,
pha:rmacist—i‘n—charge (including each new bharmacist-in—charge employed during fespondent’s
tenure of employment) and ownéu: 1o report té the board in writing acknowledgin g that the listed
individual(s) has/have read the decision in case number 4389, and terms and conditions imposed
thereby. It shall be respondent’s responsibility to ensure that his employer(s) and/or supervisor(s)

submit timely adknowledgmcnt(-s) to the board,

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (4389)
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If respondent works for or is emplo'yed by or through a pharmacy employment service,

“respondent must netify his direct supervisor, pharmacisbiﬁ-cha.rge, and owner at every entity

licensed by the board of the torms and conditions of the decision in’ case number 4389 in advance
of the respondent commencing work at each licensed entity. A record of this notification must be

provided to the board upon quuest.l

Furthermore, within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this decision, and within fifteen

(15) days of respondent undertaking any new employment by or'through a pharmacy employment
service, respondent shall cause his direct supervisor with the pharmacy employment servvice to
report to the board in Writﬁlg a,ckhowledging that he has read the decision in case number 4389 ..
and the terms and coﬁﬂitions imposed thereby. It shell be respondent’s responsibility to_énsure
that his amploye;:(sj and/or supervisor(s) submit timely aﬁlmow!edgment(s) to the board,

Failure to timely notify present or'prospeoti‘ve ernployer(s) or to cause that/those
employer(s) to submit timely acknowledgments to the board shall be considered a violation of
probation, | _ '

"Broployment” within the meaning of this provision shall include any full-time,
part-time, temporary, relief or pharmacy management service as a pharmacist or any
position for which a pharmacist license is a requirement or criterion for employment,

whether the respondent is an employee, independent contractor or volunteer.

7. ' No Supervision of Interns, Servisig as Pharmacist-in-Charge (PIC), Serving as
Designated Representative-in-Charge, or Serving as a Consultant

Dur-ing‘ the period of probetion, respondent shall not supervise any intern pharmacist; be the
pharmacist-in- ché.rge or designated representative-in-charge of any entity licensed by the board
nor serve as a conéultant unless otherwise specified in this dfder, Assumption of any such
unauthorized supervision responsibilities shall be considéred a violation of probation.

8. Reimbursement of Boarﬁ Costs
As: a condition pfecede}n’; to successful completion of probation, respondent shall pay to the

board its costs of investigation and proseciition in the amourt of $26,000, -Respondent shall meke

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (4389)
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said payrhents pursuant to a payﬁlent plan approved by the Board, wit—h the final payrhent due six
months prior to the termination of probatlon

There shall be no deviation frors this schcdule absent prior written approval by the board or
its designee, Failure to pay costs by the deadline(s) as dirécied shall be considered a vialation of
probatmn

The ﬁlmg of bankruptey by respondent shall not rehevc respondcnt of his responsibility to
reimburse the board its costs of investigation and prosecuuon.

9,. Probation Monitoring Costs

Respondent shall pay any costs associated with probation monitoring as determined by the

- board each and every year of probation. Such costs shall be payable to tﬁe board on a schedulo as

directed by the board or its designes. Failure to pay such costs by the deadline(s) as directed shall
be cansuiered a violation of probation,
10, Statos of License
Réspondent shall, at all times while on probation, maintain an actijie, current license with
the board, inchiding any period during which suspension or probation is tolled. Failure to
maintain an active, current license shall be considered a violation of probation.

If respondent's license expires or is oancelled by operation of law or othemrlse at any tlme

| during the panod of probatior, mcludm g any axtenswns thereof due to tolling or otherwise, upon

renewal or reapplication respondent's licenge shall be subject to all terms and conditions of this
prob atién not previously satisfied,

Ill. License Surrender While .o'n Probation/Suspension -

Following the effective date of this 'decision, ghould respondeﬁt oease practice due to
retirément or health, or be ctherwise unable fo satisfy the terms and co-nditions of probation,
respondent may tender his licenée to the board for surrender. The board or its designee shall have
the _discretioﬁ whether to grant the request for surrender or take any other action it deems
appropriate and reasonable, Upon formal acceptance of the surrender c;f the license, respondent
will no Ié)nger bo subject to the terms and conditions of probation. This surrender constitutes a

record of discipline and shall become & part of the respondent’s license history with the board,

7
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Upon acceptance of the; surrender, respondent shall relinquish his pocket and wall license to |-
the beard within fen (10) days of notification by the board that the surrender is accepted, o
Respondent may not reapply for any license from the board for three (3) years from the effective
date of the surrender, Respondent shall meet all r@qﬁirements applicable to the license sought as
of the date the application for that Heense is submmiited to thelboard, including any outsta.pding

costs.

12, Notification of a Change in Name, Residence Addréss, Mailing Address or
Employment

Respondent shall pofify the board.in writing within ten (10) days of any. change of
em_ployment. Said notification shall include the reésons for leaving, the address of the new
employer, the name of fhe supervisor and owner, ghd the work séhedule if known., Réspondent
shall further notify the board in writing within ten (10) days of a changs in narme, residence
address, mailing address, or phone nurber,

Faih;re to timely ﬁo.tify the bcérd of any change in employer(s), name(s), address(es), or
phone mumber(s) shall be considered a violation of probation.

13.  Tolling of Probation

Eicept during periods ‘of suspension, respondent shall, at all times while on‘ ﬁrobation, be
smployed as 5pharmacist in Ca_lﬁornia for a mjﬁimum of 12 houts per calendar month. Any
month dyring which this minimum is not met shall toll the period of probation, i.e., the period of
probation'shall be extended by one month for each month during which this mininmm is nof met,
During éﬁy such period of tolling of prc;bation, respendent must ﬁonetheless comply with all
terms anﬁ conditions of probation, :

Should respondent, regardless 5f residency, for any reason (including vacation) cease
practicing as a pharmacist for a minimum of 12 hours per calendar r;uonth in California,

respondent must notify the Board in writing within ten (10} days of the cessation of practice, and

must flirther notify the board in writing within ten (10) days of the resumption of practics. Any

faiture to prpvide such notification(s) shall be considered a violation of probation.

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (4389)
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It is a violation of probation for respondent's probation to remain tolled pursuant to the
provisioﬁs of this condition for a‘ total period, counting cons'ecutive and non-consecutive months,
exceeding thirty-gix (36) months, | ’

"Cessation of practice” means any calendar mon;th dﬁring which rés‘pondent is

not précticing asa phmcist for at least 12 hours; as defined by Business and

Professions Code section 4000 et srlaq . "Resumption of practice” means any calendar

month during which respondent is practicing as a pharmacist for at least 12 hours as a

pharmacist as defined by Business and Professions Code section 4000 et saq.

= - 14, Violation of Probation
. Ifa respondent has not complied with any term or coadition of probation, the board shall
have continuing jurisdiction over .resﬁondent, and probéﬁon shall avtomatically be extended, until
all t.e'rms and conditions have been satisfied or the board has taken other action as deemed |
appropriste to freat the failure to cormply as a violation of probation, to tenninatle probeation, and
to impose the penalty that was stayed.

If respondent vioI;a,tes probation it any respect,. the board, -aftler giving respondent notice

and an opportunity to be'heard, may revoke probation and carry out the disciplinary order that

was stayed, Notice and opportunity to be heard are not req{lh‘ed for those provisions stating that a

violation thereof may lead to antomatic termination of the stzy and/or revocation of the License, If|

a petition to revoke probétion or an Second Amended Accusation is filed against respondent
during probation, tl';e board shall}.have continming jﬁisdiction and the, period of probation shal_l be
éutoﬁlatically extended until the i}etition to revoke probation or Second Amerded Accusatiol_l is
heard and decided. .
18, Completion of Probation
Upon written notice by the toard or its designee indicating successfiol completion of
probation, respondent's license will be fully restored. - |
16, Cemmunify Services Program’ ,

* Within sixty (60) days of the effective date of this decision, rsspo‘ndeni:. gha]l submit to the

board or its designee, for prior approval, a commmumnity service.prbgram in which r_cspon&ent shall

9
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 provide free health-care related services on & reguldr basis to a conurmanity or charitable facility ot

ageﬁcy for ;11: Jeast 48 hours pef year__f'b'r each yoar of probation. Within thitty (30) days of Bogrd
approval thetsof, resporident shall submit dociunentation to the boerd demonstrating
commencement of the comuniw service program, A reoor;i of this notification must be
'provi'ded to the board upon request. Respondent shaii report oit Progress with the combnity
service program in the quartetly reparts. Failurc to timely subrgit, commence, o comply with the
program shall be copsidered a vmlatmn of probanon l
17 Ethics Course _ ‘
: W1thm sixty (60) calenday days of the eﬁbcti\re date of this decmion, respotident shall enroll
m a course i othics, at respondent’s expense, approved in advance by the board or 1ts demgnec
Failure to initiate the course during the first year of probation, and complete it within the second '

year of probation, is a violation of probation.

Respandend shall submit-a certificate of c:ompletmn to the board or its designee within five

days after compieting the eourss.
' ' ACCEPTANCE,
I hava carefirlly read the akovs St1pu.1ated Settlament and Dlsc,lp]mary Order and have fully
disoussed it with my attomay, Herb Weinberg. | undsrstand the stlpulatmnland the effect it will

have on'my Pharmacist License. I enter itto this Stipulated Settlement and Disciplivary Order

voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently, and agrée to be bound by the Decision and Qrder of the
Board of Pharm y.

paren: & faﬁwp%

I have rcm:l and fully disoussed with Rcspondent;rames Al Wi]son the terms and conditions
and ather matters contained in the above Stipulated Settlement and Dlsmplma:y Order, 1 approve
{tg fortn and content, '

DATED:

Herb Weinberg
Attorney for Respondent

10 -
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| and other matters oontamed in the above Stipulated Scttlcmcnt an

oy
o

. Thave read and fully discussed w:tth Resgpondent James A. Wilson ]

lts forra and content,

DATED: £> / 5/2@/5‘1

' Tierh Weinberg -
Altorney for Rgepondent

ENDORSEMENT
The foregoing Stzpulated Settlement and Dlsmplmary Order is hereby resPectﬂlﬂy

gubmitted for congideration by the Board of Phannacy
Dated: gw 'y ?/0 ; ‘i o ReSpectﬁllly submitted, |

Kamaras D, HARRIS

Attorney General of California .
CGREGORYA. _
Supepyising Dfputy Attormey General

/ .
THOMAS L. RINALDI

- Deputy Attorney Gehoral
: 'A#omeys Sor Complainant -

142012507838
51534535.doe

11

e1ms and conditions

plinary Ordar. Iappmw';e _
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KAMALA D. HARRIS

Attorney General of California

KAREN B. CHAPPELLE

Supervising Deputy Attorney General

THOMAS L. RINALDI

Deputy Attorney General

State Bar No. 206911
300 So. Spring Street, Suite 1702
Los Angeles, CA 90013
Telephone: (213) 897-2541
Facsimile: (213) 8§97-2804

Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Second Amended Case No. 4389
Accusation Against: .

SIX TWELVE PHARMACY; JAMES A.
WILSON, Owner SECOND AMENDED ACCUSATION
107-A West Huntington Drive
Arcadia, CA 91007

Pharmacy Permit No, P1Y 36222,
and

JAMES A. WILSON

P.O. Box 2092

Arxcadia, CA 91077

Pharmacist License No. RPH 23617

Respondent.

Complainant alleges:
PARTIES
1. Virginia Herold (Complainant) brings this Sccond Amended Accusation solely in her
official capacity as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer
Affairs. A
2. Onor about April 6, 1990, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacy Permit Number
PHY 36222 to Six Twelve Pharmacy; James A. Wilson, Owner (Respondent Six Twelve

SECOND AMENDED ACCUSATION
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Pharmacy). The Pharmacy Permit was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges
brought herein and will expire on April 1, 2014, unless renewed.

3. Onor about August 10, 1967, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmagcist License
Number RPH 23617 to James A. Wilson (Respondent Wilson). The Pharmacist License was in
full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein and expired on December
31, 2015.

JURISDICTION

4. This Second Amended Accusation is brought before the Board of Pharmacy (Board),
Department of Consumer Affairs, under the authorit.y of the following laws. All section
references are to the Business and Professions Code unless otherwise indicated.

5. Section 4040.5 of the Code states:

"Reverse distributor” means every person who acts as an agent for pharmacies, drug
wholesalers, manufacturers, and other entities by receiving, inventorying, and managing the
disposition of outdated or nonsalable dangerous drugs.

6.  Section 4301 of the Code states, in pertinent part;

"The board shall take action against any holder of a license who is. guilty of unprofessional
conduct or whose license has been procured by fraud or misrepresentation or issued by mistake.

Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is not limited to, any of the following:

"(j)} The violation of any of the statutes of this state, or any other state, or of the United

States regulating controlled substances and dangerous drugs.

"(0) Violating or attempting to violate, directly or indirectly, or assisting in or abetting the
violation of or conspiring to violate any provision or term of this chapter or of the applicable
federal and state laws and regulations governing pharmacy, including regulations established by

the board or by any other state or federal regulatory agency.

- SECOND AMENDED ACCUSATION
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7. Section 4059 of the Code states, in pertinent part:

"(a) A person may not furnish any dangerous drug, except upon the prescription ofa
physician, dentist, podiatrist, optometrist, veterinarian, or naturopathic doctor pursuant to Section
3640.7. A person may not furnish any dangerous device, except upon the prescription of a
physician, dentist, podiatrist, optometrist, veterinarian, or naturopathic doctor pursuant to Section
3640.7.

"(b) This section does not apply to the furnishing of any dangerous drug or dangerous
device by a manufacturer, wholesaler, or pharmacy to each other or to a physician, dentist,
podiatrist, optometrist, veterinar.ian, or naturopathic doctor pursuant to Section 3640.7., orto a
laboratory under sales and purchase records that correctly give the date, the names and addresses
of the supplier and the buyer, the drug or device, and its quantity. This section does not apply to
the furnishing of any dangerous device by a manufacturer, wholesaler, or pharmacy to a physical
therapist acting within the scope of his or her license under sales and purchase records that
correctly provide the date the device is provided, the names and addresses of the supplier and the
buyer, a description of the device, and the quantity supplied.

8.  Section 4104 of the Code states, in pertinent part:

(a) Every pharmacy shall have in place procedures for taking action to protect the public
when a licensed individual employed by or with the pharmacy is discovered or known to be
6hemically, mentally, or physically impaired to the extent it affects his or her ability to practice
the profession or occupation authorized by his or her license, or is discovered or known to halve
engaged in the theft, diversion, or self-use of dangerous drugs.

(b) Every pharmacy shall have written policics and procedures for addressing chemical,
mental, or physical impairment, as well as thefi, diversion, or self-use of dangerous drugs, among

licensed individuals employed by or with the pharmacy.

9.  Section 4169 of the Code states:

(a) A person or entity may not do any of the following:

SECOND AMENDED ACCUSATION
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(1) Purchase, trade, sell, or transfer dangerous drugs or dangerous devices at wholesale
with a person or entity that is not licensed with the board as a wholesaler or pharmacy.

(2) Purchase, trade, sell, or transfer dangerous drugs that the person knew or reasonably
should have known were adulterated, as set forth in Article 2 (commencing with Section 111250)
of Chapter 6 of Part 5 of Division 104 of the Health and Safety Code.

(3) Purchase, trade, sell, or transfer dangerous drugs that the person knew or reasonably
should have known were misbranded, as defined in Section 111335 of the Health and Safety
Code.

(4) Purchase, trade, sell, or transfer dangerous drugs or dangerous devices after the beyond
use date on the label.

(5) Fail to maintain records of the acquisition or disposition of dangerous drugs or
dangerous devices for at least three years.

{(b) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a violation of this section or of subdivision
(c) or (d) of Section 4163 may subject the person or entity that has committed the violation to a
fine not o exceed the amount specified in Section 125.9 for each occurrence, pursuant to a
citation issued by the board.

{c) Amounts due from any person under this section shall be offset as provided under
Section 12419.5 of the Government Code. Amounts reccived by the board under this section shall
be-deposited into the Pharmacy Board Contingent Fund.

{d) This section shall not apply to a pharmaceutical manufacturer licensed by the Food and
Drug Administration or by the State Department of Public Health,

10. Section 4081 of the Code states:

"(a) All records of manufacture and of sale, acquisition, or disposition of dangerous drugs
or dangerous devices shall be at all times during business hours open to inspection by authorized
officers of the law, and shall be preserved for at least three years from the date of making. A
current inventory shall be kept by every manufacturer, wholesaler, pharmacy, veterinary
food-animal drug retailer, physician, dentist, podiatrist, veterinarian, laboratory, clinic, hospital,

institution, or establishment holding a currently valid and unrevoked certificate, license, permit,

4
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registration, or exemption under Division 2 (commencing with Secﬁon 1200) of the Health and
Safety Code or under Part 4 (commencing with Section 16000) of Division 9 of the Welfare and
Institutions Code who maintains a stock of dangerous drugs or dangerous de.vices.

"(b) The owner, officer, and partner of any pharmacy, wholesaler, or veterinary food-animal
drug retailer shall be jointly responsible, with the pharmacist-in-charge or representative-in-
charge, for maintaining the records and inventory described in this section.

"(c) The pharmacist-in-charge or representative-in-charge shall not be criminally
responsible for acts of the owner, officer, partner, or employee that violate this section and of
which the pharmacist-in-charge or representative-in-charge had no knowledge, or in which he or
she did not knowingly participate."

11.  Section 4113, subdivision (¢) of the Code states:

(c) The pharmacist-in-charge shall be responsible for a pharmacy's compliance with all state
and federal laws and regulations pertaining to the practice of pharmacy.

12, California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1711 states, in pertinent part,

(a) Each pharmacy shall establish or participate in an established quality assurance program
which documents and assesses medication errors to determine cause and an appropriate response
as part of a mission to improve the quality of pharmacy service and prevent errors.

(b) For purposes of this section, "medication error" means any variation from a prescription
or drug order not authorized by the prescriber, as described in Section 1716. Medication error, as
defined in the section, does not include any variation that is corrected prior to furnishing the drug
to the patient or patient's agent or any variation allowed by law.

(c)(1) Each quality assurance program shall be managed in accordance with written policies

and procedures maintained in the pharmacy in an immediately retrievable form.
13. - California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1735.2 states, in pertinent part:

(h) Every compounded drug product shall be given an expiration date representing the date

beyond which, in the professional judgment of the pharmacist pérformjng or supetvising the

5
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compounding, it should not be used. This "beyond use date” of the compounded drug product
shall not exceed 180 days from preparation or the shortest expiration date of any component in
the compounded drug product, unless a longer date is supported by stability studies of finished
drugs or compounded drug products using the same components and packaging. Shorter dating
than set forth in this subsection may be used if it is deemed appropriate in the professional

judgment of the responsible pharmacist.

14. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1735.3 provides, in pertinent part:

(a) For each compounded drug product, the pharmacy records shall include:

(1) The master formula record.

(2) The date the drug product was compounded.

(3) The identity of the pharmacy personnel who compounded the drug product.

(4) The identity of the pharmacist reviewing the final drug product.

(5) The quantity of each component used in compouﬁding the drug product.

(6) The manufacturer and lot number of each component. If the manufacturer name is
demonstrably unavailable, the name of the supplier may be substituted. Exempt from the
requirements in this paragraph are sterile products compounded on a one-time basis for
administration within twenty-four hours to an inpatient in a health care facility licensed under
section 1250 of the Healih and Safety Code.

(7) The equipment used in compounding the drug product.

{(8) A pharmacy assigned reference or lot number for the compounded drug product.

(9) The expiration date of the final compounded drug product.

(10) The quantity or amount of drug product compounded.

(b) Pharmacies shall maintain records of the proper acquisition, storage, and destruction of
chemicals, bulk drug substances, drug products, and components used in compounding,

(c) Chemicals, bulk drug substances, drug products, and components used to compound
drug p&oducts shall be obtained from reliable suppliers. The pharmacy shall acquire and retain

any available certificates of purity or analysis for chemicals, bulk drug substances, drug products,

6
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and components used in compounding. Certificates of purity or analysis are not required for drug
products that are approved by the Food and Drug Administration.

(d) Pharmacies shall maintain and retain all records required by this article in the pharmacy
in a readily retrievable form for at least three years from the date the record was created.

15. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1735.5 provides, in pertinent part

(a) Any pharmacy engaged in compounding shall maintain a written policy and procedure
manual for compounding that establishes procurement procedures, methodologies for the
formulation and compounding of drugs, facilities and equipment cleaning, maintenance,
operation, and other standard operating procedures related to compounding.

(b) The policy and procedure manual shall be reviewed on an annual basis by the
pharmacist-in-charge and shall be updated whenever changes in processes are implemented.

(¢) The policy and procedure manual shall include the following

(1) Procedures for notitying staff assigned to compounding duties of any changes in
processes or to the policy and procedure manual. |

’ .(2) Documentation of a plan for recall of a dispensed compounded drug product where
subsequent verification demonstrates the potential for adverse effects with continued use of a
compounded drug product.

(3) The procedures for maintaining, storing, calibrating, cleaning, and disinfecting
equipment used in compounding, and for training on these procedures as part of the staff training
and competency evaluation process.

(4) Documentation of the methodology used to test integrity, potency, quality, and labeled
strength of compounded drug products.

(5) Documentation of the methodology used té determine appropriate expiration dates for
compounded drug products.

16.  United States Code, Title 21, section 353 states, in pertinent part:

(c) Sales restrictions.

SECOND AMENDED ACCUSATION
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(1) No person may sell, purchase, or trade or offer to sell, purchase, or trade any drug
sample. For purposes of this paragraph and subsection (d), the term "drug sample" means a unit
of a drug, subject to subsection (b), which is not intended to be sold and is intended to promote
the sale of the drug. Nothing in this paragraph shall subject an officer or executive of a drug
manufacturer or distributor to criminal liability solely because of a sale, purchase, trade, or offer
to sell, purchase, or frade in violation of this paragraph by other employees of the manufacturer or
distributor.

(2) No person may sell, purchase, or trade, offer to sell, purchase, or trade, or counterfeit
any coupon. For purposes of this paragraph, the term "coupon™ means a form which may be
redeemed, at no cost or at a reduced cost, for a drug which is prescribed in accordance with
subsection (b).

{(3) (A) No person may sell, purchase, or trade, or offer to sell, purchase, or trade, any
drug--

(i) which is subject to subsection (b), and

(ii) (I) which was purchased by a public or private hospital or other health care entity,
or

(II) which was donated or supplied at a reduced price to a charitable organization
described in section 501(c}(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 [26 USCS § 501(c)(3)].
(B) Subparagraph (A) does not apply to--

(i) the purchase or other acquisition by a hospital or other health care entity which is a
member of a group purchasing ofganization of a drug for its own use from the group purchasing
organization or from other hospitals or health care entitics which are members of such
organization,

(ii) the sale, purchase, or trade of a drug or an offer to sell, purchase, or trade a drug
by an organization described in subparagraph (A)(ii)(1I} to a nonprofit affiliate of the organization
to the extent otherwise permitted by law,

(iii) a sale, purchase, or trade of a drug or an offer to sell, purchase, or trade a drug

among hospitals or other health care entities which are under common control,

8
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. (iv) a sale, purchase, or frade of a drug or an offer to sell, purchase, or trade a drug for
emergency medical reasons, or
(v) a sale, purchase, or trade of a drug, an offer to sell, purchase, or trade a drug, or
the dispensing of a drug pursuant to a prescription executed in accordance with subsection (b).
For purposes of this paragraph, the term "entity" does not include a wholesale distributor
ol drugs or a retail pharmacy licensed under State law and the term "emergency medical reasons”

includes transfers of a drug between health care entitics or from a health care entity to a retail

~pharmacy undertaken to alleviate temporary shortages of the drug arising from delays in or

interruptions of regular distribution schedules.
(d) Distribution of drug samples,

(1) Except as provided in paragraphs (2) and (3), no person may distribute any drug
sample. For purposes of this subsection, the term "distribute” does not include the providing of a
drug sample to a patient by a--

(A) practitioner licensed to prescribe such drug,

{B) health care professional acting at the direction and under the supervision of such a
practitioner, or

(C) pharmacy of a hospital or of another health care entity that is acting at the direction

of such a practitioner and that received such sample pursuant to paragraph (2) or (3).

17. Seétion 125.3 of the Code states, in pertinent part, that the Board may request the
administrative law judge to direct a licentiate found to have committed a violation or violations of
the licensing act to pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation and
enforcement of the case.

18, Section 118, subdivision (b), of the Code provides that the

suspension/expiration/surrender/cancellation of a license shall not deprive the

Board/Registrar/Director of jurisdiction to proceed with a disciplinary action during the period

within which the license may be renewed, restored, reissued or reinstated.
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FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
 (Failure to Produce Records of Acquisition)
19. Respondents are subject to disciplipary action under section 4301, subdivisions (j)
and (o), in that they failed to comply with section 4081, subdivision (a) when on or around

August 9, 2011, Respondents failed to provide acquisition records for thirteen Demerol 50mg/ml

ampules upon demand by the Board.

SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Lack of Policy and Procedure - Quality Assurance Programs)
20. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 subdivisions (j) and
(0), in tﬁat they failed to comply with California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 17;1 1,
subdivision (¢)(1). The circumstances are that on or around August 9, 2011, during a routine
inspection by the Board, Respondents did not have a written policy and procedure in place to

address a quality assurance program.

THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Lack of Policy and Procedure — Theft and Impairment)
21. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 subdivisions (j) and
(o) in that they failed to comply with section 4104, subdivision (b). The circumstances are that on
or around August 9, 2011, during a routine inspection by the Board, Respondents did not have a
written policy and procedure in place to address licensed employee theft and impairment.

FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Unprofessional Conduct — Violation of Compounding Limitations)

22.  Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 subdivisions (j) and |-

(0), in that they failed to comply with Californié Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1735.2,
subdivision (h). The circumstances are that during a routine inspection by the Board that began
on August 9, 2011, pharmacy records revealed that on ot around April 9, 2010, Méy 24, 2010,
September 17, 2010, October 8, 2010, January 28, 2011, and April 26, 2011, dangerous drugs

were compounded using expired ingredients.

10
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FIFTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Lack of Master Formula)
23. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 subdivisions (j) and
(0), in that they failed to comply with California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1735.3,
subdivision (a). The circumstances are that on or around Augﬁst 9, 2011, during a routine
inspection by the Board, it was revealed that the pharmacy failed to maintain master formula
records for all pfes-c:r-iption drugs compounded and dispensed by the pharmacy.

SIXTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Lack of Policy and Procedure — Compounding)
24,  Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 subdivisions (j) and
(0) in that they failed to comply with California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1735.5,
subdivision (a). The circumstances are that on or around August 9, 2011, during a routine
inspection by the Board, it was determined that Respondents compounded and dispensed
prescription drugs without having a written compounding policy and procedure in place.

SEVENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Unlicensed Reverse Distribution)
25. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 subdivisions (j) and
(o) in conjunction with section 4160(a) in that during a follow-up inspection by the Board on or
around August 15, 2012, it was determined that between August, 2011 and May, 2012,
Respondents acted as reverse distributors for sixty-nine different prescription medications.

EIGHTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Receipt of Medications from Unlicensed Persons)
26. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 subdivisions (j) and
(0), in that between December 8, 2010 and June 1, 2012, they failed to comply with section 4169,
subdivision (a)(1), by receiving transferred medications from Valley Digestive Center, a surgical

clinic that was not licensed by the board as a wholesaler or pharmacy.

11
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NINTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Improper Furnishing of Dangerous Drugs or Devices)
27.  Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 subdivisions (j) and
(0) in that they violated section 4059. The circumstﬁnces are that from December 8, 2010,
through June 11, 2012, Respondents furnished Valley Digestive Center with dangerous drugs
without providing proper sales records.

TENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Violation of Federal Laws Pertaining to Drug Samples)

28. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 subdivisions (j) and
(0), in that they violated provisions of federal law pertaining to drug samples. The circumstances
are that during a routine inspection of Six Twelve pharmacy that began on August 9, 2011, large
quantities of dangerous drug samples were found on the pharmacy premises that had no
legitimate bharmacy purpose for being there. The discovery of the drug samples led to further
investigation by pharmacy inspectors which revealed that from at least 2004 to 2011,
Respondents were violating the following federal laws:

a.  Title 21, section 353(c)(1): Respondents transacted with prescribers including
doctors and/or clinics to receive drug samples pursuant to “wish lists™ that Respondent Wilson
would prepare. In exchange for the drug samples, Respondents provided monetary credits to the
prescribers that were applied to future purchases from Six Twelve Pharmacy.

b, Title 21, section 353(d): Respondents engaged in the illegal distribution of

drug samples. Recipients included orphanages in Mexico as well as the Flying Doctors of Mercy.
PRAYER |

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters. herein alleged,
and that following the hearing, the Board of Pharmacy issue a decision:

I. Revoking or suspending Pharmacy Permit Number PHY 36222, issued to Six Twelve
Pharmacy; James A, Wilson, Owner,

2. Revoking or suspending Pharmacist License Number RPH 23617, issued to James A.
Wilson,

12
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3. Ordering James A. Wilson to pay the Board of Pharmacy the reasonable costs of the
investigation and enforcement of this case, pursuant to Business and Profossions Code section

125.3; and

4,  Taking such other and further actiox as deemed necessary agd proper.

DATED: 2. /25/ /

{ VIRG HEROLD

EX.CCU. fﬁcel' S e en il e e
- Board of Pharmacy

Department of Consumer Affairs

State of California

Complainant

LA2012507838
51463037.doc

13
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KAMALA D, HARRIS

Attorney General of California

KAREN B, CHAPPELLE

Supervising Deputy Attorney General

THOMAS L. RINALDI

Deputy Attornsy General

State Bar No. 206911 .
300 So. Spring Street, Suite 1702
Los Angeles, CA 90013
Telephone: (213} 897-2541
Facsimile: (213) 897-2804

Atiorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE,
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the First Amended Accusation | Case No. 4389
Against:

SIX TWELVE PHARMACY; JAMES A,
WILSON, Owner FIRST AMENDED ACCUSATION

107-A West Huntington Drive
Arcadia, CA 91007

Pharmacy Permit No. FXIY 36222,
and |

JAMES A, WILSON

P.0O. Box 2092

Arxcadia, CA 91077

Pharmacist License No. RPH 23617

Respondent,

Complainant alleges;
' PARTIES
1. Virginia Herokl (Complainant) brings this Firs‘t Amended Accusation solely in her
official capacity as the Bxecutive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer
Affairs, '
2. Onorabout April 6, 1990, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacy Permit Number

PHY 36222 to Six Twelve Pharmacy; James A, Wilson, Owner (Respondent Six Twelve

FIRST AMENDED ACCUSATION
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Pharmacy). The Pharmacy Permit was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges
brought herein and will expire on April 1, 2014, unless renewed.

3. Onorabout August 10, 1967, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacist License
Number RPH 23617 to James A, Wilson (Respondent Wilson). The Pharmacist License was in .
full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought hérein and expired on December
31,2013, '

JURISDICTION

4, Tﬁis First Amended Accusation is brought before the Board of Pharmacy (Board), '
Department of Consumer Affairs, under the authority of the following laws, All section
references are to the Business and Profassions Code unless otherwise indicated,

5. Section4040.5 of the Codo states: |

"Reverse distributor” means every person who acts as an agent for pharmacies, drug
wholesalers, manufacturers, and other entities by receiving, inventorying, and managing the
disposition of cutdated or nonsalable danger.ous‘ diugs.

6.  Sectlon 4301 of tha Code states, in pertinent part;

"The board shall take action against any holder of a license whe is guilty of unprofessional
conduct or whose license has been procured by fraud or mistepresentation or issued by mistake.

Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is not limited to, any of the following:

"(j) The violation of any of the statutes of this state, or any other state, or of the Unitod

States regulating controlied substances and dangerous drugs.

"(0) Violating or atterapting to violate, directly or indirectly, or assisting in or abetting the

violation of or conspiring to violate any provision or term of this chapter or of the applicable

foderal and state laws and regulations governing pharmacy, including regulations established by |

the board or by any other state or federal regulatory agency.

FIRST AMENDED ACCUSATION




)

L R T = N A = - T 3 S U R Y et

MG 1 Y th I w

7. Section 4059 of the Code states, in pertinent part:

"(a) A person may not furpish any dangerous drug, except upon the prescription of a
physician, dentist, podiatrist, optometrist, vetorinarian, or naturopathic doctor pursuant to Section
3640.7. A person may not furnish any dangerous device, except upon the preseription of a
physician, dentist, podiatrist, optometrist, veterinarian, or naturopethic doctor pursuant to Section
3640.7.

“(b) This section does not apply to the furnishing of any dangercus drug or dangerous
device by a manufacturer, wholesaler, or pharmacy to each other or to a physician, dentist,
podiatrist, optometrist, veterinarian, or naturopathic doctor pursuant to Section 3640.7.,orto a
laboratory under sales and purchase records that correotly give the date, the names and addresses
of the suppliér and the buyer, the drug or dsvice, and its quantity, This section does not epply to
the furnishing of any dangereus device by a manufacturer, wholesaler, or pharmacy to a physical

therapist acting within the scope of his or her license under sales and purchase records that

correctly provide the date the device is provided, the names and addresses of the supplier and the

buyer, a.description of the device, and the quantity supplied.

8  Section 4104 of the Code states, in pertinent part:

(#) Every pharmacy shall have in place pl'oce-dures for taking action to protect the public
when a licensed individual employed by or with the pharmacy is discovered or known to be
chemically, mentally, or physically impatred to the extent it affects his or her ability to prastice
the profession or oceupation authorized by his or her license, or is discovered or known o have
engaged in the thefi, diversion, or self-use of dangerous drugs. -

(b) Bvery pharmacy shall have written policies and procedures for addressing chemieal,
mental, of physical impairment, as well as theft, diversion, or self-use.of dangerous drugs, among

livensed individuals employed by or with the pharmacy.

G, . Section 4169 of the Code siates:

() A petson o entity may not do any of the following:

FIRST AMENDED ACCUSATION
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(1) Purchase, trade, sell, or transfer dangerous drugs or dangerous devices at wholesale
with a person or entity that is not licensed with the board as a wholesaler or pharmacy.

(2) Purchase, trade, sell, or transfer dangerous drugs that the person knew or reasonably
should have known were adulterated, as set forth in Article 2 (comumencing with Section 111230)
of Chapter 6 of Part 5 of Division 104 of the Health and Safety Code,

(3) Purchage, trade, sell, or transfer dangerous drugs that the person knew or reasonably
should have known were misbranded, as defined in Section 111335 of the Health and Safety
Code.

(4) Purchase, trade, sell, or fransfer dangerous drugs or dangerous devices afer the beyond
use date on the label,

(5) Fail to maintain records of the acquisition or disposition of dangerous drugs or
dangerous devices for at least threo years.

(b) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a violation of this section o of subdivision

() or {d) of Ssetion 4163 may subject the person or entity that has committed the violation to a

- fine not to exceed the amount specified in Section 125.9 for each oceurrence, pursuant to a

citation issued by the board,

(¢} Amounts due from any person under this section shall be offset as previded under
Section 12419.5 of the Governmeﬁt Code. Amounts received by the board under this section shall
be deposited into the Phax;macy Board Contingent Fund.

(d) This section shall not apply to 4 pharmaceutical manufacturer licensed by the Food and
Drug Administration or by the State Department of Public Health,

10, Section 4081 of the Code states; | |

"(a) All records of manufacture and of sale, acquisition, or disposition of dangerous drugs
or dangerous devices shall be af all times churing dbusiness hours open to inspection by suthorized
officers of the law, and shall be preserved for at least three years from the date of making, A
current inventory shall be kept by every manufacturer, wholesaler, pharmmacy, veterinary
food-animal drag retailer, physiciaﬁ, denlist, podiatrist, veterinarian, laboratory, clinic, hospital,
institution, or establishment holding a currently valid and virevoked certificate, license, permit,

4
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registration, or exemption under Division 2 (commencing with Section 1200) of the Health and
Safety Code or under Part 4 (commencing with Section 16000) of Division 9 of the Welfare and

Ipstitutions Code who maintains a stock of dangerous drugs or dangetous devices.

"(b) The owner, officer, and partner of any pharmacy, who lesaler, or veterinary food-animalj

drug retailer shall be jointly responsible, with the pharmavcist-in-charge or representative-in-
charge, for maintaining the records and inventory described in this section. |

"(0) The pharmacist-in-charge or representative-in-charge shall not be criminally
responsible for.acts of the owner, officer, partner, or employee that violate this sectibn and of
which the pharmacisf-in-charge or representa,tiveﬂlimcharge had no knowledge, or in which he or
she did not knowingly participate."

11, California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1711 states, in pertinent part,

(8) Bach pharmscy shall éstablish or participate in an established quality assurance pfogram
which documents and assesses medication errors to d'cterminé c;,ause and an appropriate response
as part of a mission to improve the quality of pharmacy service and prevent errors,

(b) For purposes of this section, "medication error" means any variatien from & prescription
or drug order net authorized by the prescriber, as described in Seetion 1716, Medication error, as
defined in the section, does not include any variation that is corrected prior t6 furnishing the drug
to the patient or patient's agent or any variatioﬁ allowed by law. '

~ (c)(1) Bach quality assurance program shall be managed in accordance with written policies
and procedures maintained in the pharmacy in an immediately retrievable form,

12, Seotion 4342 of the Code states;

(a) The board may institute any action or actions as may be provided by law and that, in its
discretion,_afe necessary, to prevent the sale of pharmaceutical preparations-and drugs that do not
conform to the slandard and 'tests as to quality and strength, provided in the latest edition of the
Uﬁitad States Pharmacopoeia or the National Formulary, or that violate any provision of the
Sherman Food, Drug and Cosmetic Law (Prm‘t 5 (cm‘hmencing with Section 109875) of Division

104 of the Health and Safety Code),
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(b) Any knowing or willful violation of any regulation adopted pursuant to Section 4006
shall be subject to punishment in the same manner as is providgd in Sections 4336 and 4321.

13, California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1718 states:

"Current Inventory" as used in Sections 4081 and 4332 of the Business and Professions

Code shall be considered to include complete accountability for all dangerous drugs handled by

every licensee enumeratsd in Sections 4081 and 4332.

“The controlled substances inventories required by Title 21,. CFR, Section 1304 shall be
available for inspection upon request for at least 3 years after the date of the inventory,

14, California Cods of Regulations, title 16, section 1735.3 provides, in pertinent part:

(&) For each compounded drug product, the pharmacy records shall include:

(1) The master formula record.

(2) The date the drug product was compounded,

(3) The identity of the pharmacy personnel who compounded the drug product.

(4) The identity of the pharmacist reviewing the final drug product.

(5) The qﬁantity of each compoment used in compounding the drug product.

(6) The manufacturer and lot number of each component. If the manufactuter name is
detnonstrably uravailable, the name of the supplier may be substituted. Exempt from the
requirements in this paragraph are stetile producis compounded on a one-time basis for
administration within twenty-four hours o au inpatient in a health care facility licensed under
scction 1250 of the I—Iéa]th and Safety Code,

(7) The eqﬁipmant used in compounding the drug product.

(8) A pharmacy assigned reference or lot number for the compounded drug product,

(9) The expiration date of the final compounded drug product,

(10) The quantity or amount of drug product compounded,

(1) Pharmacies shall maintain records of the proper acquisition, storage, and destruction of
chemicals, bulk drug substances, dr.ug produets, and components used in compounding.

(c) Chemicals, bulk drug substances, drug products, and.components used to compound

drug products shall be obtained from reliable su;-wpliers. The pharmacy shall acquire and retain

6
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any available certificates of purity or analysis for chemicals, bulk drug substances, drug products,
and components used in compounding, Cettificates of purity or analysis are not required for dryg
produc'ts that are approved by the Food and Drug Administration,

(d} Pharmacies shall maintain and refain afl records required by this article in the pharmacy
in a readily retrigvable form for at least three ysars from the date the record was created.

15, California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1735.5 provides, in pertinent part

{a) Any pharmacy engaged in compounding shall maintain a written policy and procedure
manual for compounding that establishes procurement procedures, methodologies for the
formulation and compounding of drugs, facilities and eQuipmént cleaning, maintenance,
operation, and other standard operating procedures related to compounding,

{b) The policy and procédure manual shall be reviewed on an annual basis by the
pharmacist-in—ohafge and shall be updated whenever changes in processes are fmplemented.

(c) The policy and procecture manua! shall inchude the following

(1) Procedures for notifying staff assigned fo compounding duties of any changes in
pfooesses or to the policy and procedure manual,

(2) Documentation of a plan {or recall of a dispensed compounded drug product where
subsequent verification demonstrates the potential for adverse effects with continued use of a
compounded drug product, |

{(3) The procedures for meintaining, storing, valibrating, cleaning, and disinfecting
equipment vsed in compounding, and for trainihg on these procedures as part of the staff training
and competency evaluation process,

(4} Documentation of the rﬁethodology used to test integrity, potency, quality, and labeled
strength of compounnded drug products, _

. (5) Documentation of the methodology used to determine appropriai;e expiration dates for
compounded drug products, -

16, Health and Safety Code section 111330 states:

‘Any drug or device is misbranded if its labeling is false or misleading in any particular,

17. Code of Federal Regulations, title 21, scction 1304.21 provides, in pertinent part;

7
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(a) Every registrant réquired to keep records pursuant to § 1304.03 shall maintain on a
current basis a complete and accurate record of each such substance manuyfactured, imported,
recéived, sold, delivered, exported, or otherwise disposed of by him/her, except that nc registrait
shall be required to maintain a perpetual inveontory, |

(b) Separate records shall be maintained by a registrant for each registered loéation exeept
as provided in § 1304.04 (a). In the event controlled substances are in the possession or under the
conirol of a registrant at a locati(;n for which he is not registered, the substances shall be included
in the records of the registered location to which they are subject to control ot to which the person
possessing the substance is responsible. 7

(¢} Separate records shall be maintained by a regisﬁant for each independent activity for
which he/she s registered, except as provided in § 1304.22(d).

(d) In recording dates of receipt, importation, distribution, exportation, or other {ransfers,
the date on which the controlled substances are actually teceived, imported, distributed, exported,
or otherwise transferred shall be used as the date of receipt or distribution of any documents of
transfer (e.g., invoices or packing slips).

18.  Section 125.3 of the Code states, in pertinent part, that the Board may request the
administrative law judge to direct a licentiate found to have committed a violation or violations of
the licensing act to pay & sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation and
enforcement of the case.

19, Section 118, subdivision (b), of the Code provides that the
suspension/expiration/surrender/cancellation of a license shs!ll not deprive the
Boérd/Regi'strar/Director'of jurisdiction to proceed with a disciplinary action during the period
within which the license may be renewed, restored, reissued or reinstated, |

FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE,

{(Failure to Produce Records of Acquisition)
20. Respondents ate subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 subdivisions (j) and

(0), in‘ that they faited to comply with section 4081, subdivision {(a) when on or avound August 9,
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2011, Respondent failed to provide acquisition records for thirteen Demerol 50mg/ml ampules
upon demand by the Board,
- SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Lack of Policy and Procedure — Quality Assurance Programs)

21, Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 sﬁbdivis-ions (j) and
(0), in that they failed to comply with California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1711,
subdivision {¢)(1). The cii"cumstanées are that on or around August 9, 2011, during a routine
inspection by the Board, Respondents did not have a policy and procedure in place to address a
quality assurance program.

THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Lack of Policy and Procedure — Th_eﬂ and Impairment)

22, Respondents are subject to disciplinary action uﬁder section 4301 subdivisions (i) and
(o) in that they failed to comply with section 4104, subdivigion (b). The circumstances are that on
or arpund August 9, 2011, during & routine inspection by the Board, Respondents did not bave a

policy and procedure in place to address licensed employee theft and impairment,

FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
{Misbranded Drogs)

23. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 subdivisions (j) and
(v), in that they failed to comply with Health and Safety Code section 111330, The
circumstances are that on or around August 9, 2011, during a routine inspection by the Board,
pharmacy records revealed that on or atound April 9, 2010, May 24, 2010, September 17, 2010,
Januwary 28, 2011, April 26, 2011, and October 8, 2011, dangerous drugs were compounded using
expired ingredients.

FIFTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

‘(Lack of Master Formula)
24, Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 subdivisions (j) and

(0), in that they failed to comply with California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1735.3,

9
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subdivigion (a). The circumstances are that on or around August 9, 2011, during & routing
inspection by the Board, it was revealed that the pharmacy failed to maintain master formula
records for all prescription drugs compounded and dispensed by the pharmacy.
SIXTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
fLack of Policy and Procedure — Compounding)
25. Respondents are subject to diseiplinary action under section 4301 subdivisions (j) and
(0) in that they failed to comply with California Code of Regulations, title 16, seetion 1735,5,
subdivision (a). The circumstances are that on or around August 9, 2011, during a routing
inspection by the Boérd, it was determined that Respendents compounded and dispensed |
preseription drugs without having a compounding policy and procedure in place.

SEVENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Compounding with Expired Ingredients)
26. Respondents are subject to diseiplinary action under section 4301 subdivisions'(j) and
(0), in that between Maxch 2010 and April, 2011, they failed to comply with section 4169
subdivision (8)(4) by dispensing dangercus drugs that were compoﬁndecl vsing expired
ingredients. -

EIGHTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Unlicensed Reverse Distribution)
27. Respondents are subjeet to disciplinary action under section 4301 subdivisions (j) and
(o) in conjunction with section 4160(s) in that during a follow-up inspecti@n by the Board on
August 15, 2012, it was determined that between Auguét, 2011 and May, 2012, Respondeants
acted as reverse distributors for sixty-nine difforent proseripiion medications.
| NINTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
. (Lack of Acquisition Records)
28. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 430} subdivisions (j) and
(0) in that they failed to comply with Code of Tederal Regulations section 130421 when a

follow-up inspection conducted by the Board on August 15, 2012 revealed that Respondents

10
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accepted six controlled substances from surgical clinics without maintaining proper

documentation,

TENTH CAUSE ¥YOR DISCIPIINE

(Failure to Records of Acquisition and/or Maintain Current Inventory)

28, Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 subdivisions (j) and

(0), in that they failed to comply with séction 4081(a) in conjunction with California Code of

Regulations, title 16, section 1718, when a follow-up inspection conducted by the Board on

August 15, 2012 revealed that Respondents failed to keop a record of acquisition or a current

invéntory for sixty-nine prescription drugs as follows:

Bhg

“Actos 15mg tab

adenosine 6mg/2ml inj

amiodarone 150mg/3ml inj

amoxicillin 875mg tabs

ampicillin 2gm vial

atenolol 25mg tab

atropine 0.4ml ml x 1 1l

atropine 1mg/ml inj

atropine lmg/ml x Iml

Aviane 28 tabs

Beconase AQ 180 metered doscs

caleium chloridel00mg/m! x 10m]

carbamazepine 200mg tab

Celestone 0mg/ml x 5 ml inj

chloral hydrate 500mg/5ml syrup

Cleocin 300mg/2ml x 2ml inj

dantriom 20mg vial

diazepam 5mg tab unit dose

diazepam 5mg/ml x Tl

diphenhydramine 50mg/m! x Iml inj

dopamine 1600meg/ml IV 250ml

Enalaprilat 1.25mg/ml x I ml

ephedrine 50mg/ml x 1 ml inj

epinephrine 0, Tmg/ml inj

epinephrine Tmg/ml 30mf inj

]
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epinephrine 1mg/ml x I aml amp

Ethiodol 10 m! ampule -

flumazenit 0,5/5ml % 5wl inj

flumazenil 1mg/10ml x 10ml

furosemide 100mg/10ml x 10ml

furoseride 20mg/ml inj

heparin 1,0006 ml x 1 ml

heparin 10u/ml % 3 ml

Humulin R 3ml

hydroxyzine 25mliml x 1 ml

Influenza Vaccing

kenolog 40mg 1ml inj

Kinevac >mg vial

Lanoxin inj, 2l

lidocaine 100mg/5ml inj

lidocaine 2gm/500ml inj

lidocaine 50mg/5ml inj

lisinopril 10mg tab

lorazepam 2mg/ml x1 mi vial

magnesium sulfate 1gny/2ml x 2ml

Mareaine 0,5% S0ml inj

methylprednisolone 80mg/m! x 1ml

Mierogestin Fe 1/20 28 tabs

Necon 777 28 tabs

NitroQuick

Ondansetron 4myg tab

Ondangetron 4mp/2ml x 2 ml

Oxycodone/APAP 5-325 tublets

penylephrine 10mg/ml x 1 ml inj

Premarin (1, 9mg tab

ProAir Inhaler

prochlopramine 10mg/2ml x 2l ]

prochlorperazine 10mg sapp

Propranolol lmg/ml x 1 ml inj

| Sodiur Crloride 30ml vial

Solu Cortef 100mg/2ml

Selu Medrol 125mg/Zm!

Solu Medrel 250mg/Zml

Teiracycline 500mg caps

Tigan 200mg/ml x | ml

12
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Tussionex suspengion
Vaitrex 500mg tabs
Xylocaine 2% Jelly
Zantac 50mg/ml x 1 m]

ELEVENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINFE
(Receipt of Medications from Unlicensed Persons) -
~ 30.  Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 subdivisions (j) and
(0), in that between March 2010 and April, 2011, they failed to comply with section 4169
subdivision (a)(1) by receiving transferred medications from surgical clinics and physician offices
that were not licensed by the board as a wholesaler or pharmacy.
TWELFTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
{(Imoproper Furnishing of Dangerous Drugs or Devices)

31.  Respondents ate subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 subdivisions (j) and
(0} in that‘théy violated section 4659. The circumstances are that from August, 2009 to August,
2012, Respondenis furnished Valley Digestive Center, Arcadia Outpatient Surgery Center, and
.Fo_othill Surgery Center LP with dangerous drugs without providing proper sales records,

| PRAYER |

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged,
and that following the hearing, the Board of Pharmacy issue a decision:

1, Revoking or suspending Pharmacy Permit Number PHY 36222, issued to Six Twelve
Pharmacy; James A, Wilson, Qwrer,

2. Revoking or suspending Pharmacist License Number RPLI 23617, issued to James A.
Wilson, ' |

3. Ordering James A, Wilson to pay the Board of Pharmacy the reasonable costs of the
ittvestigation and enforcement of this case, pursuant to Buginess and Professions Code section -
125.3; ' ‘

F

I
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L .
VIRGINIA HEROLD \
Executtve Officer
Board of Pharmacy
Department of Consumer Affairs
State of California
Complainant

14
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KAMALA D. HARRIS

Attorney General of California

KAREN B, CHAPPELLE

Supervising Depuly Attorney General

THOMAS L. RINALDI

Deputy Attorney General

State Bar No, 206911
300 So, S]i')ring Street, Suite 1702
Log Angeles, CA 90013
Telephone; (213) 897-2541
Facsimile; (213) §97-2804

Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case No. 4389

SIX TWELVE PHARMACY; JAMES A.
WILSON, Owner

107-A West Hungtington Drive

Arcadia, CA 91007 -

ACCUSATION

Pharmacy Permit No, PHY 36222,
and

JAMES A, WILSON

P.O. Box 2092

Arcadia, CA 91077

Pharmacist License No. RPH 23617

Respondent.

Complainant alleges:
PARTIES

1. Virginia Herold (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in her official capacity
as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs,

2. Onorabout April 6, 1990, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacy Pormit Number
PHY 36222 to Six Twelve Pharmacy; James A. Wilson, Owner (Regpondent Six Twelve
Pharmacy), The Pharmacy Permit was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges
brought horein and will expire on April 1, 2014, unless renewed,

]
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3. Onorabout August 10, 1967, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacist License
Numnber RPH 23617 to James A. Wilson (Respondent Wilson)., The Pharmacist License was in
full foroe and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein and expired on December
31, 2013,

JURISDICTION

4,  This Accusation is brought before the Board of Pharmacy (Board), Department of
Consumer Affairs, under the authority of the following laws. All section references ate to the
Business and Professions Code unless otherwise indicated.

5. Section 4040.5 of the Code states:

"Reverse distributor” means every person who eets as an agent for pharmacies, drug
wholesalers, manufacturers, and other entlties by receiving, inventorying, and managing the
disposition of outdated or nonsalable dangercus drugs.

6.  Section 4301 of the Code states, in perfcinent part:

"The board shall take action against any helder of a liconse who is guilty of unprofessional
conduct or whose license has been procured by fraud or misrepresentation or issued by mistake,

Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is not limited to, any of the following:

"“(7) The violation of any of the statutes of this state, or any other state, or of the Unifed

States regulating controtled substances and dangerous drugs.

"(0) Violating or-attempting to violate, directly or indirectly, or assisting in ot abetting the
viclation of or conspiring to violate any provision or term of this chapter or of the applicable
federal and state laws and regulations goveming pharmacy, including regulations established by

the board or by any other state or federal regulatory agency.

7. Section 4104 of the Code states, in pertinent part:
(a) Every pharmacy shall have in place procedures for taking action to protect the public
when a licensed individual employed by or with the pharmacy is discovered or known fo be

2
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chemicaliy, mentally, or physically impaired to the extent it affects his or her ability to practice
the profession or occupation authorized by his or her license, or is discovered or known to have
engaged in the theft, diversion, or self-use of dangerous drugs,

{b) Every pharmacy shall have writter policies and procedures for addressing chemical,

mental, or physical impalrment, as well as theft, diversion, or self-use of dangerous drugs, among

licensed individuals employed by or with the pharmacy.

8. Section 4169 of the Code states:

{a) A person or entity may not do any of the following:

(1) Purchase, trade, sell, or transfer dangerous drugs or dangerous devices at wholesale
with a person or entity that is not licensed with the board as a wholesaler or pharmacy.

(2) Purchase, trade, sell, or transfer dangerous drugs that the person knew or reasonably
should have known were adulterated, as set forth in Article 2 (commencing with Section 111250)
of Chapter & of Part 5 of Division 104 of the Health and Safety Code,

(3) Purchase, frade, scll, or transfer dangerous drugs that the person kncw or reasonably
should have known were misbranded, as defined in ‘S-eotion 111333 of the Health and Safety
Code. -

(4) Purchase, trade, sell, or transfer dangerous drugé or dangerous devices after the beyond
use date on the label.

(5) Fail to maintain records of the acquisition or digposition of dangerous drugs or
dangerous devices for at least three years,

{b) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a violation of this section or of subdivision
(c) or (d) of Section 4163 may subject the person or entity that has committed the violationto a
fine not to exceed the amount specified in Section 125.9 for each occurrence, pursuant to a
citation isswed by the board,

(c) Amounts due from any person under this section shall be offset as provided under
Section 12419.5 of the Government Code. Amounts received by the board under'th'is section shall

be deposited into the Pharmacy Board Contingent Fund,

3
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{d) This section shall not apply to a pharmaceutical manufacturer licensed by the Food and
Drug Admiﬁistration or by the State Department of Public Health,

9. Section 4081 of the Code states:

"{a) All records of manufacture and of sale, acquisition, or disposition of dangerous drugs
or dangerous devices sha[_l be at all times during business hours open to inspection by authorized
officers of the law, and shall be preserved for at least three years from the date of making. A
current inventory shall be kept by every manufacturer, wholesaler, pharmacy, veterinary
food-animal drug retailer, physician, dentist, podiﬁtrist, yeterinarian, laboratory, ¢linic, hospita],
Institution, or establishment holding a currently valid and unrevoked certificate, license, permit,
registration, or exemption under Division 2 (commencing with Section 1200) of the Health and
Safety Code or under Part 4 {commencing with Section 16000) of Division ¥ of the Welfare and
Institutions Code who maintains a stock of dangerous drugs or dangerous devices.

"(b) The owner, officer, ﬁnd partner of any pharmacy, wholesaler, or veterinary food-animal
drug retailer shall be jointly vesponsible, with the pharmacisi-in-charge or representative-in-
charge, for maintaining the records and inventory described in this section.

"(¢) The pharmacist-in-charge or representative-in-charge shall hot be eriminally
regponsible for acts of the owner, officer, partner, or employee that violate this section and of
which the pharmacist-in-charge or representative~-in-charge had no knowledge, ot in which he or
she did not knowingly participate.”

10, California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1711 states, in pertinent part,

(8) Each pharmacy shall establish or participate in an established quality assurance program
which documents an¢l assesses medication errors to determine cause and an aﬁproprlatc response
as part of a mission to improve the quality of pharmacy service and prevent errors.

(b) For purposes of this section, "medication ereor" means any variation from a prescription
or drug order not authorized by the prescriber, as described in Section 1716, Medication error, as
defined in the section, doos not include any variation that is corrected prior to furnishing the drug

to the patient or patient's agent or any variation allowed by law,

Acousation
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(e)(1) Each quality assurance program shall be managed in accordance with written policies

and procedures maintained in the pharmacy in an tmmediately retricvable form.

11, Section 4342 of the Code states;

{a) The board may institute any action or actions as may be provided by law and that, in its
discretion, are necessary, to prevent the sale of pharmaceutical preparaticns and drugs that da not
conform to the standard and tests as to quality and strength, provided in the latest edition of the
United States Pharmécopoeia or the National Formulary, or that violate any provision of the
Sherman Feod, Drug and Cosmetic Law (Part 5 (commencing with Section 109875) of Division
104 of the Health and Safety Code).

(b) Any knowing or willful violation of any regulation adopted pursuant to Section 4006

shall be subject fo punishment in the same manber as is provided in Sections 4336 and 4321,

12, California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1718 states:

"Current Inventory” as used in Sections 4081 and 4332 of the Business and Professions
Code shall be considered to include complete accountability for all dangerous drugs handied by
every licensee enumerated in Sections 4081 and 4332,

The controlled substances inventories required by Title 21, CFR, St_action 1304 shall be
gvailable for inspection upon request for atleast 3 years aftor the date of the -inventory.

[3.  California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1735.3 provides, in pertinent part:

(1) For-each compounded drog praduct, the pharmagcy records shall include:

(1) The master formula record. .

(2) The date the drug product was compounded,

(3) The identity of the pharmacy personne! who compounded the drug product,

(4} The identity of the pharmacist reviewing the final drug product.

(5} The quantity of each component used in gompounding the drug product.

(6} The manufacturer and lot number of each-component. If the manufacturer name is

demonstrably unavailable, the name of the supplier may be substituted. Exempt from the

5
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requirements in this paragraph are sterile products compounded on a one-tims basis for
adlriinistration within twenty-four hours to an inpatient in a health care facilify licensed under
seetion 1250 of the Health and Safety Code.

{7) The equipment used in compounding the drulg product,

(8) A pharmacy assigned reference ot lot number for the compounded drug product.

(9) The expiration date of the final compounded drug product,

(10) The quantity or amount of drug product compounded.

(b) Pharmacies shall maintain records of the proper acquisition, storage, and destruction of
chemicals, bulk drog substances, drug products, and components used in compounding.

(¢) Chemicals, bulk drug 'substahces, drug products, and components used to compoutd
drug products shall be obtained from reliable suppliers. The pharmacy shall acquite and retain
any available certificates of purity or analysis for chemicals, bulk drug substances, drug products,
and eomponents used in compounding, Certificates of put‘ity or analysis are not required for drug
products that are approved by the Food and Drug Administration,

(d) Pharmacics shall maintain and retain all records required by this article in the pharmacy
in a readily retrievable form for at least three years from the date the record was created.

14, California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1733.5 provides, in pertinent part

(a) Any pharmacy engaged in compounding shall maintain a written policy and procedure
menual for compounding that establishes procurement procedures, methodologies for the
formulation and compounding df’ drugs, facilities and equipment cleaning, maintenance,
operation, and other standard operating procedures related to compounding,

(b) The policy and procedure manual shall be reviewed on an annual basis by the
pharmacist-in-charge and shall be updated whenever changes in processes are 'implemented.

{c) The policy and procedure manual shall include the following

(1) Procedures for nofifying staff assigned to compounding duties of any changes in

processes or to the policy and procedure manual,

Actusation
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(2) Documentation of a pian for recall of a dispensed compounded drug product where
subsequent verification demonstrates the potential for adverse effects with continued use of a
compounded drug product, ‘

(3) The procedures for maintaining, storing, calibrating, cleaning, and disinfecting
squipment used in compounding, and for training on these procedures as part of the staff training
and competency evaluation process,

{4) Documentation of thé methodology used to test integrity, potency, quality, and labeled
strength of compounded drug products,

(5) Documentation of the methodology used to determine appropriate expiration dates for
compounded drug products,

15.  Health and Safety Code section 111330 states:
Any drug or device is misbranded if its"labeling is false or misteading in any particular,
16,  Code of Federal Regulations, title 21, section 1304.21 provides, in pertinent part:

{a) Bvery registrant required to keep records pursvant to § 1304.03 shall maintain on a
current basis a complete and accurate record of each such substance manufactured, imported,
received, sold, delivered, exported, .or otherwise disposed of by him/her, except that no registrant
shall be required to maintain a perpetual lnventoiy. |

{b) Separate records shall be maintained by a registrant for each registered location except

as provided in § 1304.04 (a). In the event controlled substances are in the possession or under the

contro) of a registrant at a location for which he is not registered, the substances shall be includéd
in the records of the registered location to which they are subject to control or to which the person
possessing the substance is responsible,

(¢) Separate records shall be maintained by a registrant for each indepondent activity for
which he/she is registered, except as provided In § 1304.22(d).

(d) In recording dates of receipt, importation, distribution, exportation, or other transfers,
the date on which the confrolled substances are actually received, imported, distributed, exported,
or otherwise transferred shall be used as the date of receipt or distribution of any documents of

iransfer {e.g., invoices or packing slips),
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17 Seciton 125.3 of the Code states, in pertinent part, that the Board may request the
administeative law judge to direct 4 licentiate found to have committed a violation or violations of
the licensing act to pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation and
enforcement of the case.

18, Section 118, subdivision (b), of the Code provides that the
suspensiqn/expiration/surrender/cancel]ation of & license shall not deprive the
Board/Re_gistrar/Director of jurisdiction to proceed with a disciplinary action during the period
within M}ioh the license may be renewed, restored, reissued or reinstated.

FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Produce Records of Acquisition)
19, Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 subdivisions (j) and
(0), in that they failed to comply with section 4081, subdivision (a) when on or around August 9,
2011, Respondent failed to provide acquisition records for thirteon Demerol 50mg/ml ampules
upon demand by the Board. .
SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Lack of Palicy and Procedure — Quality Assurance Programs)
20, Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 subdivisions (j) and
(0), in that they failed to comply with California Code of Regulations, tiile 16, section 1711,
subdivision (¢)(1). The circumstances are that on or around August 9, 2011, during a routine .
inspection by the Board, Respondents did not have a policy and procedure in place to address a
quality assurance program. |

THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

{(Lack of Policy and Procedure ~ Theft and Impairment)
21, Respondents are subject to disclplinary action under section 4301 subdivisions () and
(o) in that they failed to comply with section 4104, subdivision (b), The circumstancss are that on
or around August 9, 2011, during a routine inspection by the Board, Respondents did not have a

policy and procedure in place to address licensed ermployee theft and impairment,
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FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Misbranded Drugs) '

22. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action vader section 4301 subdivisions (j) and
(o), in that they failed to comply with Health and Safety Code section 111330, The
circumsiances aré'that on or around August 9, 2011, during a routing inspeoti'on by the Board,
pharmacy records revealed that on or around April 9, 2010, May 24, 2010, September 17, 2010,
January 25, 2011, April 26, 2011, and October 8, 2011, dangerous drugs were compounded using
expired ingredients.

FIFTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Lack of Master Formula)

23, Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 subdivisions (j) and
{0), in that they failed to comply with California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1735.3,
subdivision (a). The circumstances are that on or around August 9, 2011, during a routine
inspection by the Board, it was revealed that the pharmacy failed to maintain master formula
records for all prescription drugs compounded and dispensed by the pharmacy.

SIXTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

{Lack of Policy and Procedure — Compounding)
24. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under seetion 4301 subdivisions {j) and
{0) in that they failed to comply with California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1735.5,
subdivision (a). The circumstances are that on or arcund A'ugust 9, 2011, during a routine
inspection by the Board, it was determined that Respondents compounded and dispensed
prescription drugs without having a compounding policy and procedure in place.

SEVENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Compounding with Expired Ingredients)
25, Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 subdivisions (j) and
(0), in that between March 2010 and April, 2011, they failed to comply with section 4169
subdivision (a)(4) by dispensing dangerous drugs that were compoﬁnded using expired

ingredients.
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EIGHTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Unlicensed Reverse Distribution)
26. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 subdivisions (j) and
(o) in conjunction with section 4160(a) in that during a follow-up inspection by the Board on
August 15, 2012, it was determined that between August, 2011 and May, 2012, Respondents _
acted as reverse distributors for sixty-nine different prescription medications.
NINTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Lack of Acquisition Records)
27, Respondenis are subject fo disclplinary action under section 4301 subdivisions (j) and
(o) in that they failed to comply with Code of Federal Regulations section 1304.21 when a
follow-up inspection conducted by the Board on August 15, 2012 revealed that Respondents
accepted six controlled substances from surgical ¢linics without maintaining proper
documentation,

TENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Records of Acqulsition and/or Maintain Current Inventory)
28, Respondents are subject to disui]éylinar'y action vnder section 4301 subdivisions (j) and
{0), in that they failed to comply with section 4081(a) in conjunction with California Code of
Regulations, title 16, section 1718, when g follow-up inspection conducted by the Board on

August 15, 2012 revealed that Respondents failed to keep a record of acquisition or a current

inventory for sixty-nine prescription drugs as follows:

Actos 15mg tab
adenosine 6mg/2m! inj
amiodarone 150mg/3ml inj
amoxicillin 875mg tabs
ampicillin 2gnt vial
atenolel 23mg tab

atroping 0.4ml m!x 1 ml
atropine 1mg/ml inj
atropine Img/ml x Tml

10
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Aviane 28 tabs

Beconase AQ 180 metered doses

calcium chloride100mg/ml x 10ml

carbamazepine 200mg tab

Celestone 6mg/ml x 5 ml inj

chloral hydrate 500mg/Sml syrup

Cleocin 300mg/2m! x 2ml in]

dantrium 20mg vial

diazepam 5mg tab unit dose

diazepam Smg/ml X Zml

diphenhydramine 50mg/ml x Iml inj

dopamine 1600mog/m! IV 250ml

Enalaprilat 1.25mg/ml x 1 ml

ephedrine 50mg/mlx [ ml inj

epinephrine (. Img/ml inj

gpinephrine Img/ml 30ml inj

epinephrine 1mg/ml x 1 aml amp

Ethiodol 10 ml ampule

flumazenil 0.5/5m! x Sm! inf

flumazenil Img/10ml x 10m!

furosemide 100mg/10m] x 10ml

furosemide 20mg/ml inj

| heparin 1,000u mlx 1 ml]

heparin 10u/ml x 3 mj

Humulin R 3ml

‘hydroxyzine 25mi/ml x 1 ml

Influenza Vaccine

kenolog 40mg 1ml inj

Kinevac Smg vial

Lanoxin inj, 2ml

lidocaine 100mg/Sml inj

fidocaie 2gm/500ml inj

lidocaine 530mg/Smi inj

lisinopril 10mg tab

lorazepam 2mpg/ml x1 ml vial

magneslum sulfate 1gm/2ml x 2ml

Marcaine 0.5% 50ml inj

methylprednisolone 80mg/ml x Imi

Microgestin Fe 1/20 2.8 tabs

_ Necon 777 28 tabs

11
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NitroQuick

Ondansetron 4mg tab
Ondansetron 4mg2m! x 2 ml
Oxycodone/APAP 5-325 tablets
penylephrine 10mg/ml x 1 ml inj
Premarin 0.9mg (sb

ProAlr Inhaler

prochlopraming 10mg/2ml x 2ml inj
prochlorperazine 10mg supp
Propranolol Tmg/ml x 1 ml inj
Sodium Chloride 30mi vial

Solu Cortef 100mg/2ml

Solu Medrol [25mg/2ml

Solu Medrol 250mg/2ml
Tetracycline S00mg caps

Tigan 200mg/ml £ 1 ml
Tugsionex suspension

Valtrex 500mg tabs

Xylocaine 2% Jelly

Zantac 50mg/mlx 1 ml

ELEVENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

{(Receipt of Medications from Unlicensed Persons)
29, Respondenfs are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 subdivisions (j) and
(0), in that between March 2010 and April, 2011, they failed to comply with section 4169 |
subdivision (a)(1) by receiving transferred medications from surgical ¢linics and physician offices
that were not licensed by the board as a wholesaler or pharmacy. -
PRAYER |
WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged,

‘and that followlng the bearing, the Board of Pharmacy issue a decision:

1. Revoking or suspending Pharmacy Permit Number PHY 36222, issued to Six Twelve
Pharmacy; James A. Wilson, Owner,

2. Revoking or suspending Pharmacist Licénse Number RPH 23617, issued to James A,
Wilson, ' |

12
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3. Ordering James A, Wilson to pay the Board of Pharmacy the reasonable costs of the

investigation and enforcement of this case, pursvant to Business and Professions Code section
125.3;

4,  Taking such other and further actionas deemed necessary and/proper.

DATED: iZ // 6[// 2 Cf
IRCrI EROLD

Executi fﬁcer
Board of Pharmacy
Department of Consutner Affairs

State of California
Complainant
LA2012507838
51281965,doc
13
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